1993

Williams v. Hoopiiana : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The case on appeal is an action by the Plaintiff/Appellant to terminate a railroad easement across its property after the railroad disclaimed and abandoned its easement and removed the tracks. The Defendant/Appellee, the owner of the adjacent property, continued to claim an easement across the land of the Plaintiff/Appellant. The Plaintiff brought suit to quiet the title to his property. A subsequent Motion for Summary Judgment by the Plaintiff/Appellant was denied by the trial court. The case was then tried before the trial court as a bench trial, where the trial court refused to terminate the easement in behalf of the Defendant/Appellee. The Plaintiff/Appellant brings this appeal on the judgment of the trial court.

STATEMENT OF FACTS.

1. The Plaintiffs/Appellants are residents of Salt Lake County and are owners of certain real property located at 737 South 300 West, Salt Lake City, Utah 84101, and more particularly described as follows:

Lot 5, Block 12, Plat "A", Salt Lake City Survey, as is recorded in the Salt Lake County Recorder's Office.

2. The Plaintiffs/Appellants have been in open common, notorious, exclusive, continuous and adverse possession of all said property for more than eighteen (18) years and have paid property taxes on the property referred to above.

3. On or about April 6, 1917, the then owner of Lot 5, referred to above, Theodore T. Burton and Florence Burton, his wife, granted to the Oregon Shortline Railroad Company a railroad easement for a right-of-way for the construction, operation and maintenance of a railroad spur that traversed through all of Lot 5. (Please see Exhibit "A" attached and incorporated by reference). (Transcript P.5)

4. A condition of the Easement of April 6, 1917, granted by the previous owner of Lot 5 was that:

"If at any time the said spur track or any portion thereof shall be removed from the above-described land, then and in that event this conveyance shall become null and void and have no affect between the parties hereto or their successors, or assigns, as to such trackage so removed."

5. Subsequently, on or about February 8, 1947, the then owner of Lot 5, Florence M. Burton, granted to the then owner of the following real property;

The West 1/2 of Lot 6, Block 12, Plat "A"
Salt Lake City Survey.

a right-of-way for a spur track in perpetuity. However the right-of-way was granted for the exclusive use of the real property as a "spur track" and could not be extended to any other property adjacent to the west half of Lot 6, Block 12, Plat "A", Salt Lake City Survey. Said Easement of February 8, 1947 was subject to the terms and conditions of the original Easement of April 6, 1917. (Please see Exhibit "B" attached and incorporated by reference). (Transcript P.6)

6. The successor-in-interest to Edward L. Burton, the Grantee of the right-of-way for a railroad spur on the west 1/2 of Lot 6, is the Defendant/Appellee who is the current owner and

in possession of certain real property at 349 West 700 South, Salt Lake City, Salt Lake County, State of Utah, more particularly described as follows:

West 1/2 of Lot 6, Block 12, Plat "A", Salt Lake City Survey.

The Defendant/Appellee, claims some right, title, or interest to the right-of-way for the spur track (railroad) granted by the Plaintiff's predecessor-in-interest to the Oregon Shortline Railroad Company on or about April 16, 1917.

7. On or about July 6, 1983, the Union Pacific Railroad Company, the Lessee of the railroad spur across Lot 5, notified the Plaintiffs/Appellants, who are now the owners of Lot 5, of their Notice of Intent to Terminate the Easement of April 6, 1917, that was originally granted to the railroad company for the creation of the railroad spur track. The railroad's basis to terminate the easement was due to the non-use by the owners of Lot 5 and Lot 6. The owner of Lot 6 had failed to use the railroad spur line during the past ten (10) years. (See Exhibit "C-1" attached).

8. On December 17, 1987, the Union Pacific Railroad for and in behalf of the Oregon Shortline Railroad Company, recorded a Disclaimer releasing all of their rights, title and

interest to the Easement of April 6, 1917, and removed the railroad track, ties, and other equipment and vacated the railroad spur easement. (Please see Exhibit "C-2" attached and incorporated by reference). (Transcript P.7,10). Said Disclaimer of December 17, 1987, was granted based upon the original terms of the railroad spur Easement of April 6, 1917, which stated:

"If at any time the said spur tracks, or any portion thereof shall be removed from the above-described land, then and in the event this conveyance shall become null and void and of no effect between the parties thereto or their successors or assigns as to such trackage so removed."

9. The Defendant/Appellee has been notified of the Disclaimer of December 17, 1987, as to the railroad spur Easement by the Oregon Shortline Railroad Company and/or the Union Pacific Railroad Company, and the railroad's conclusion that the Easement is terminated based upon the removal of the railroad tracks and equipment by the railroad company. (Transcript P.45) However, Defendant/Appellee continues to assert an interest in the disclaimed railroad spur easement across the Plaintiff's/Appellant's property claiming that the granting of a easement was perpetual, despite the fact that the easement has failed by virtue of the cessation of the "specific purpose" upon which the Defendant's predecessor in interest was granted an

easement, that is, the continued existence of the railroad spur. (Please see Exhibit "D" for a copy of Plat showing the alignment of the extinguished railroad easement).

10. The Defendants/Appellees, subsequent to December 17, 1987, removed from Lot 6 the rails and ties on their property and a portion of the ties and rails on the Plaintiff's/Appellant's property.

11. Plaintiffs/Appellants brought this suit to Quiet Title to the property located in Lot No. 5, in view of the continued assertion of a real property interest by the Defendant/Appellee in his continued claim for a railroad easement through Plaintiffs/Appellants' property.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The Easement of April 6, 1917, across the lot of the Plaintiff/Appellant was conditional upon the tracks being removed. This condition was applicable to any assignment of the owner of the real property of Lot 5. The subsequent Assignment of Easement to the owner of Lot 6, on February 8, 1947, was subject to the conditions of the first Easement of April 6, 1917. When the railroad disclaimed its easement and removed the tracks

on Lot 5, that disclaimer and track removal effectively terminated the easement of February 8, 1947, to the owner of Lot 6.

2. The easement of April 6, 1917, and February 8, 1947, were "specific purpose easements". The disclaimer of easements by the railroad and the subsequent removal of the tracks terminated the special purpose of the easement. The use was abandoned. Thereupon the easement as to Lot 6 is terminated.

3. Non-use of the easement by both owners of Lot 5 and 6 are reflected by the failure to use the easement by either owner in the last ten (10) years. The owner of Lot 6 removed the tracks from his property and the railroad removed the tracks on Lot 5 and in the adjacent streets. This removal of tracks established intent on the part of the Defendant/Appellee to abandon his easement. Public policy favors the clearing of titles of property where an easement has been abandoned.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

DEFENDANT'S EASEMENT WAS CONDITIONAL UPON PLAINTIFFS' EASEMENT. A careful reading of Exhibit "A" which is the Easement of April 6, 1917, clearly indicates that the original Easement across the Plaintiffs' land was conditional upon its "specific use", and that any assignment was also bound by that condition which is found in the last paragraph of Exhibit "A":

" and if at any time the said spur tracks, or any portion thereof shall be removed from the above-described land, then and in that event this conveyance shall become null and void and of no effect between the parties hereto or their success or assigns, as to such trackage so removed."

The owner of Lot 5, subsequently conveyed a right-of-way to Lot 6. Reference to the Agreement Creating Right-of-Way of February 8, 1947, clearly indicates that it was contemplated by the Grantor and the Grantee that the easement to the owner of Lot 6, was conditional upon the existence of the railroad easement granted by the owner of Lot 5. The Paragraph 3 of the Agreement Creating Right-of-Way of February 8, 1947, reads as follows:

"All of Lot 5, Block 12, Plat "A", Salt Lake City Survey, over which a spur track of the Union Pacific Railroad Company is located which leads into the property of the party of the second part (emphasis added)."

Furthermore, same Agreement refers to the existence of the rail-road easement in Paragraph 4, which reads as follows:

" which is served by the spur track above referred to which crosses the property of the first part (owner of Lot 5). Emphasis added.

Again, in Paragraph 5, of the same Agreement the Grantee and the Grantor both acknowledge the fact that the Agreement Creating Right-of-Way of February 8, 1947, acknowledges the existence of the previous right-of-way established on April 6, 1917 on the property of the owner of Lot 5, where the Agreement says as follows:

"Whereas, said parties are desirous of establishing the right-of-way for said spur track of record, now therefore, this Agreement witnesseth:"

Clearly, the reading of Exhibit "A" and Exhibit "B" are inter-related and conditional upon one another. The time of the easements being granted are sequential and dependant. The owner of Lot A could only give to Lot B something that previously existed. That is, the railroad easement of April 6, 1917. The

terminology in Exhibit "B" regarding granting the easement as a "perpetual right" is conditional upon the existence of the easement through Lot 5. As long as the easement for the railroad existed on Lot 5, the owner of Lot 6 had that perpetual right to use the easement. However, if the easement terminated on Lot 5, the easement of Lot 6 became null and void as the easement had a "specific purpose" which had terminated.

POINT II.

"SPECIFIC PURPOSE EASEMENTS" ARE CONDITIONAL UPON THE CONTINUED EXISTENCE OF THAT "SPECIFIC PURPOSE". It is settled law that where an easement is granted for a specific purpose that upon the termination of that specific purpose the easement terminates and the underlying real property for which the easement was granted reverts back to the owner of the underlying property. That is to say, that the Plaintiffs as the owners of Lot 5, received their property back free and clear of any claim or encumbrance when the Union Pacific Railroad disclaimed any further interest in the rail-road right-of-way across Lot 5. (Please see Exhibit "C" which constitutes the Disclaimer and abandonment by the Union Pacific Rail-Road which is the successor-in-interest to the Oregon Short Line Rail-Road Company,

which occurred on December 17, 1987, and was duly recorded with the Salt Lake County Recorder's Office.

In the case of Gauger v. State of Kansas, et al., 815 P.2d 501 (Kan. 1991), the Supreme Court of the State of Kansas on a case closely in point indicated that the owner of the property over which the easement existed received the property back without any encumbrance or existing easement when the purpose for the easement, that is, the railroad right-of-way, terminated. The Court stated on Page 504:

In Pratt v. Griesse, 196 Kan. 182, Syl. ¶1, 409 P.2d 777 (1966), this court said,
"An easement for a railroad right-of-way is limited by the use for which the easement is acquired, and when that use is abandoned the easement is terminated and the property reverts to the owner of the servient estate."

And the court further stated in the same opinion on Page 505:

"Whatever its name, the interest was taken for use as a right of way, it was limited to that use, and must revert when the use is abandoned."

This same basic doctrine has been affirmed by the Court of Civil Appeals of Texas in the case of Kearney & Son v. Fancher, 401 S.W.2d 897 (Tex. 1966), where the Court in a case in

point, was dealing with an easement over property in which the railroad had terminated its easement to an adjacent landowner. The Court stated the following on Page 906:

"The record reflects that the purpose for which the easement was granted has ceased to exist. Because of the cessation of, and impossibility of, use in accordance with the specific purpose, granted, the easement has now terminated and appellant's title should be cleared of the cloud cast by the prior grant of such easement. This rule is stated in Shaw v. Williams, 332 S.W.2d 797, P. 800 (Eastland Civ.App., 1960, no writ. hist.) as follows: 'An easement granted for a particular purpose terminates as soon as such purpose ceases to exist, is abandoned, or is rendered impossible of accomplishment.' 28 C.J.S. Easements §54, p. 718". (Emphasis added).

This same basic doctrine is affirmed by the Court of Appeals of the State of Oregon, 1977, in the case of Firebaugh v. Boring, Or. App., 591 P.2d 421.

In the case now before the Court, the owner of Lot 6, (the Defendants) are unable to claim an easement over Lot 5, (owned by the Plaintiffs) due to the fact that the easement was abandoned and terminated by the railroad company. The owner of Lot 5, is unable to grant an easement to the owner of Lot 6, even if he wished to do so, due to the lack of impossibility of use as the railroad easement no longer exists.

POINT III

THE DISCLAIMER OF THE EASEMENT BY THE RAILROAD COMPANY TERMINATES THE DEFENDANTS EASEMENT. Based upon the case law stated above, the review of Exhibit "C", and the Disclaimer of December 17, 1987, wherein the railroad company abandoned and terminated its easement over Lot No. 5, clearly voids and terminates the Agreement Creating Right-of-Way of February 8, 1947, (Exhibit "B") granted by the prior owner of Lot 5 to the owner of Lot 6. The right-of-way for the owner of Lot 6 was conditional upon the existence of the railroad easement. Subsequent to the issuing of the Disclaimer and recording the same of December 17, 1987, the railroad company removed the rails, ties, switches and all other equipment which enabled the railroad to traverse Lot 5. Furthermore, the railroad company disclaimed any further right, title or interest in maintaining an easement across the property of Lot 5. The Plaintiffs, the owners of Lot 5, are faced with the "impossibility of accomplishment" in providing a spur track for the use and benefit of the owner of Lot 6. Therefore, the easement claimed by owner of Lot 6 is now null and void and the property under which the previous railroad track existed on Lot 5 reverts to the owner of Lot 5, without any further encumbrances or easements claimed by the owner of Lot 6.

POINT IV.

THE EASEMENT OF APRIL 6, 1917, AND THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF FEBRUARY 8, 1947, ARE SEQUENTIAL AND ARE LINKED. A clear and careful reading of the Easement and Right-of-Way referred to above clearly indicates that the Right-of-Way of February 8, 1947, refers to the railroad spur which exists only as a direct result of the Easement of April 16, 1917. The owner of Lot 5 could not give a spur track right-of-way in 1947 if he had not previously entered into an Easement in 1917 with the railroad. Furthermore, both the Easement of 1917 and Right-of-Way of 1947 are "specific in purpose", that is, both refer to a "spur track". The Grantor of the Right-of-Way of 1947 (the owner of Lot 5) could not grant the Right-of-Way without first having the Easement of 1917. When the Easement of 1917 was disclaimed in 1987 and the railroad tracks, ties and switches were removed, the owner of Lot 5 could no longer provide a right-of-way on the existing Easement because the Easement ceased to exist. It ceased to exist not because of any overt act on the part of the owner of Lot 5 or of any act of the owner of Lot 6. The Easement and subsequently the Right-of-Way ceased to exist because of the railroad's disclaiming any interest in the Easement and removing physical equipment making the use of the "spur track" impossible.

POINT V.

PUBLIC POLICY FAVORS REMOVING DISCONTINUED RIGHT-OF-WAYS. There is a public policy benefit in terminating easement and right-of-ways where the specific purpose of that right-of-way or easement ceases to exist. Otherwise, properties would continue to have encumbrances and encroachments by adjacent property owners who could not use discontinued rights-of-way or easements which would continue to cloud the title of the these properties with no realistic possibility of ever using the right-of-way. This doctrine is spelled out in detail in the case of Kearney & Son v. Fancher, 401 S.W. 2nd 897 (Tex. 1966), on page 906, previously quoted.

POINT VI.

THE EASEMENT HAS BEEN ABANDONED THROUGH NON-USE BY ITS' OWNER. In the State of Utah the case of Western Gateway Storage Company v. Treseder, 567 P.2d 181 (Utah 1977) clearly established the criteria for abandonment of an easement through non-use. The Court has stated on Page 182 the following:

"It is well recognized that an easement or right-of-way may be abandoned. . . . This court has previously recognized a right gained by conveyance may not be lost by non-use alone and that an actual intent to abandon be evident."

In viewing the facts of this case we find that the easement owned by the Defendant/Appellee is by conveyance or by grant rather than by prescriptive use. Other relevant factors which the Court set out as essential for abandonment in Western Gateway Storage Company v. Treseder, supra, are present in the case at hand as follows:

- (a) **Non-Use.** The facts are undisputed that the subject right-of-way has not been used by the owner of Lot 5 or Lot 6 for approximately ten (10) years. This fact is further supported by the letter from the Union Pacific Railroad to the owner of Lot 5, Mr. Richard Williams, dated July 6, 1983, (Exhibit C-1) in which they indicate that the railroad spur was not being used and that the railroad intended to terminate its easement. Four years later on December 17, 1987, the railroad filed a Disclaimer of the easement which was recorded on June 2, 1988.
- (b) **Intent to Abandon.** The Defendant/Appellee has also demonstrated his intent to abandon the easement through its failure to utilize the easement which was specific in nature as a railroad spur. Subsequent to the Disclaimer of the easement by the Union Pacific Railroad Company

recorded on June 2, 1988, the Defendant had the railroad rails and ties removed from his property and apparently sold for salvage or scrap. Defendant/Appellee also caused his agent to enter onto the property of the Plaintiffs and remove a portion of the railroad ties and rails for the same purpose. This conduct after having been placed on notice of the railroads intent to disclaim and terminate the right-of-way of 1983 and then the actual Disclaimer of 1988, and the Defendant/Appellee then removes the rails and ties, clearly shows the Defendant/Appellee's intent to abandon the easement. As this easement was for the specific purpose of providing only a railroad spur line to the Defendant/Appellee's property, the Defendant/Appellee was precluded from utilizing the easement for any other purpose. The removal of the railroad rails and ties clearly indicate that it was his intent to no longer utilize the easement in question. This conduct coupled with the actual notice that the Defendant/Appellee had of the railroad's disclaimer and eventual termination of the right-of-way coupled with the specific nature of the

railroad's easement shows actual intent on the part of Defendant to abandon that easement. The easement in its present condition cannot be used by the Defendant/Appellee whatsoever due to the specific nature of the Defendant/Appellee's easement over the Plaintiff's property; that is for the use of a railroad spur line. There has been no occasional use during the last approximately ten (10) years and now there can be no use whatsoever due to the removal by the Defendant/Appellee of his own railroad rails and ties and the further removal of the ties and rails by the railroad from the Plaintiff/Appellant's property and its termination of the railroad's right-of-way on 700 South and the further removal of the rails and ties from that public street which provided access to the Plaintiff/Appellant's property.


The intent to abandon by the non-use of the Defendant/Appellee of his easement is clear and convincing and meets the criteria as set out in the Western Gateway Storage Company v. Treseder, cited above.

CONCLUSION

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