1993

Williams v. Hoopiiana : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I. WILLIAMS HAVE FAILED TO MARSHAL THE EVIDENCE TO ADEQUATELY CHALLENGE THE DISTRICT COURT'S FINDINGS.

Williams have failed to marshal all the evidence in support of the district court's findings and to demonstrate that viewing the evidence in light most favorable to the district court, the evidence is insufficient to support the findings. Utah appellate courts have consistently held that to challenge a trial court's findings, "an appellant must marshal all the evidence in support of the trial court's findings and then demonstrate that even viewing it in light most favorable to the court below, the evidence is insufficient to support the findings. K. J. Scharf v. BMG Corp., 700 P.2d 1068, 1070 (Utah 1985). While Williams

claim to accept the district court's findings of fact, Williams' arguments are inconsistent with the court's findings. Williams cannot argue inconsistently with the district court's findings without first engaging in the marshalling process. See Ohline Corp. v. Granite Mill, 849 P.2d 602, 604 (Utah App. 1993).

Therefore, this court should assume that the record supports the district court's findings entirely. See id.

POINT II. HOOPIIANA'S EASEMENT WAS ACQUIRED INDEPENDENTLY FROM A PREVIOUS EASEMENT AND WAS NOT CONDITIONAL IN ANY WAY TO THE 1917 EASEMENT OF THE RAILROAD.

This case involves two distinctly different easements. The April 6, 1917 easement, Exhibit 1 (R 119), was to a railroad for a divided spur, one of which served Hoopiiana's tract in Lot 6 to the east and the other continued to serve other properties to the south. Exhibit 1, is the same as Exhibit A appended to Williams' brief. The 1917 easement provided for termination upon removal of any portion of the track and in fact the railroad filed a disclaimer in 1988 terminating the 1917 easement. The 1947 Agreement Creating Right of Way to Lot 6 was appurtenant to the owner of Lot 6 and runs with the land and made no provision for termination but provided the owner of Lot 5 with the "right and privilege of changing the right-of-way for said spur track or other spur tracks to meet her convenience" provided that the changed right-of-way "continue to serve" Lot 6 and "to permit said [changed] spur track to enter the property of the party of

the second part at the same place as said spur track now enters the property of said party of the second part." [Emphasis added]. The last paragraph of the 1947 easement makes the right-of-way an appurtenance by stating that it is for the exclusive use of the "real property of said party of the second part." The 1947 easement is Exhibit 2 in the record (R 0121) and is designated Exhibit B in Williams' brief.

Hoopiiiana testified that he acquired the property in 1946 (R 149) and required his seller to provide him a separate easement and that he received the 1947 Easement, Exhibit 2. (R 0159).

The 1947 easement differs from the 1917 easement in several respects, the most notable ones being:

(a) The 1947 easement recites that it "grants and conveys to said party of the second part a right-of-way over the real property above described of said parties of the first part [Lot 5] for a perpetual right-of-way of a spur track crossing said property of the said party of the first part to serve and for the use and benefit of the above described real property of the party of the second part" [West 1/2 Lot 6].

Whereas the 1917 easement was granted to the Oregon Short Line Railroad Company ("OSLR") solely for its two spur tracks over a definitely described center line of a right-of-way 8.5 feet on either side of the center line. It was not given for use and benefit of any designated property and was to become null and void in the event any portion of the spur tracks were removed from the right-of-way described.

(b) The 1947 easement contained no provision for termination: While the recital in the 1947 document refers to a Union Pacific Railroad Company spur track, the granting provisions refer to "a perpetual right of way of a spur track" and allows the servient owner to change the location so long as the changed spur enters the dominant property at the same place as the existing spur enters the dominant property. Accordingly, if the servient owner elected to change the location, such change would appear to be the right and obligation of the servient owner, and not that of the dominant owner or the railroad. Also, if the railroad removed its spur track, the dominant owner is given a perpetual right to maintain "a spur track" which it could own or have anyone else own for its service.

The 1947 easement was in no way conditional upon the 1917 termination provision and to the contrary was given to avoid such kind of termination.

POINT III. WHILE THE 1917 EASEMENT MAY BE CLASSIFIED AS A "SPECIFIC PURPOSE EASEMENT" SUBJECT TO TERMINATION, THE 1947 EASEMENT WAS FOR THE GENERAL PURPOSE OF A PERPETUAL SPUR TRACK.

Hoopiiiana's easement for a perpetual spur track should be regarded as continuing for so long as the property could have some possible use of the spur track. In its findings of fact, the district court found that the 1947 easement is a perpetual right of way and not a specific purpose easement (R 104). Williams attempt to classify the 1947 right-of-way as a specific purpose easement dependent upon the 1917 easement in direct

contradiction to the district court's findings. The district court's determination that the 1947 right-of-way is perpetual indicates that the district court found no such condition. Specifically, the court found that "no such termination provision was contained in [Hoopiiana's] easement of February 8, 1947, which by its terms was stated to be a perpetual right-of-way of a spur track crossing the property now owned by the [Williams]" (R 103-04). As established in POINT I above, Williams may not challenge the district court's findings of fact without first marshalling the evidence. Therefore, this court should reject the following arguments offered by Williams that contradict the trial court's findings: 1) Hoopiiana's easement is conditional upon Williams' easement; 2) Hoopiiana's easement is a specific purpose easement; 3) the disclaimer of the easement by the railroad company terminated Hoopiiana's easement; and 4) the easement of April 6, 1917, and the right-of-way of February 8, 1947, are sequential and are linked.

Apparently, Williams are relying upon proof of abandonment in the arguments under their Points II through VI.

POINT IV. THE COMPLAINT DID NOT ALLEGE ABANDONMENT.

Williams' complaint alleged a termination of the 1917 easement by the railroad which Williams also claim terminated the 1947 easement. There has never been a termination or disclaimer by Hoopiiana, the owner of the 1947 easement.

Williams filed a motion for summary judgment (R 22), to

which Hoopiiana filed a memorandum in opposition thereto (R 43). In Williams' reply to Hoopiiana's memorandum, Williams denied that they were claiming "non-use" and repeated that the 1917 termination provision applied to the 1947 agreement. Specifically, Williams replied:

The Plaintiffs, by and through their attorney, Hollis S. Hunt, Reply to the Defendant's Memorandum in Opposition to the Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment as follows:

1. **THE ISSUE IS NOT ONE OF "NON-USE", BUT RATHER THE CONTINUED EXISTENCE OF "SPECIFIC PURPOSE"**. The Defendant cites the case of Western Gateway Storage Company v. Treseder, 567 P.2d 181 (Utah 1977), in which the Court talks about abandonment and non-use of the right-of-way. However, the case before the Court here is not a question of "non-use" of a right of way by the owner of Lot 6. It is a question of the continued existence of the "subject matter" of the right of way, that is, the continued existence of the spur track.

Williams' Reply Memorandum.

At trial, Williams proffered evidence of abandonment but called no witnesses on such issue. Hoopiiana challenged the proffer and indicated that the complaint did not allege nonuse or abandonment (Tr 31 R 146). During the proffer, Williams' counsel was asked by the court what he would say was the abandoned date, to which counsel replied: "Oh, the date it was abandoned would be after the disclaimer by Union Pacific Railroad in 1988, shortly after the tracks were removed" (R 144). Hoopiiana called two witnesses to testify, beginning with Malualani Hoopiiana (R 149), and the plaintiff Richard Williams (R 168). Malualani Hoopiiana

testified that: 1) the spur track serving his property connected to the main line of 700 South just east of Fourth West (formerly 300 West) (R 153); 2) the main tracks are still in the street and presently serve the newspaper agency every day; 3) Hoopiiana had service over the spur track in 1983 when he brought in a crane and used to ship hundreds of carloads of material on that track a year (Tr 40 R 155); 4) in 1984, Williams erected a gate at the 700 South entrance and Hoopiiana demanded and received a key to the gate from Mr. Williams (Tr 40 R 155) (Williams acknowledged that he gave Hoopiiana the key (Tr 56 R 171)); 5) while he was absent from the state for a few months, someone had stolen part of his spur track without his consent or knowledge and a portion of the spur remains on his land (Tr 41 R156); 6) he has previous experience with both the Union Pacific and D & RG railroads on four occasions where he arranged for spur track connection with them (Tr 45 R 160); and 7) Hoopiiana's tenant, Gene Pugmire expressed an interest in bringing in new steel in maintaining the railroad easement (Tr 49 R 0164).

Mr. Richard Williams was called to testify by Hoopiiana, and he stated: 1) he acquired the property in Lot 5 in the early 1970's (Tr 54 R 169); 2) he knew of the two easements of 1917 and 1947 as shown in his title policy (Tr 55 R 170); 3) in 1984, he was asked to remove the gate he had placed at the 700 South entrance to the easement, and as a result provided Hoopiiana with a key to the gate (Tr 56 R 171); and 4) that he had negotiated to purchase the right-of-way from Hoopiiana in 1986.

In short, Williams failed to allege abandonment of the right-of-way in their pleadings and offered no testimony regarding abandonment at trial. Hoopiiana's objection to Williams' proffered testimony regarding abandonment supports the trial court's determination that there was no abandonment of the 1947 spur track easement. Therefore, this court should uphold the trial court's conclusion that there was no abandonment.

POINT V. TEMPORARY NONUSE IS NOT ABANDONMENT.

Temporary nonuse of the right-of-way is no more evidence of abandonment than is temporary nonuse of a vacant lot or building.

The cases holding railroad easements to be abandoned by nonuse, deal with easements in gross. An easement in gross is a mere personal interest in or right to use the land of another which is not attached to a dominant estate. 25 Am. Jur. 2d Easements and Licenses Section 12. Earnst v. Allen, 55 Utah 272, 277, 184 P. 821, 830 (1919).

The 1947 Agreement created an easement appurtenant wherein Hoopiiana's land is the dominant estate and the Williams' land is the servient estate.

Utah follows the general rule stated in 25 Am. Jur. 2d Easements and Licenses Sec. 105: "As a general rule, an easement acquired by grant or reservation cannot be lost by mere nonuse for any length of time, no matter how great." See Riter v. Cayias, 431 P.2d 788, 789 (Utah 1969).

In Western Gateway Storage Co. v. Treseder, 567 P2d 181

(Utah 1977) the Utah Supreme Court held that Treseder had a right of way by grant, which was initially used for delivery of coal. After natural gas replaced coal, the way was used to remove waste, delivery of building materials and movement of tenants. Even though the way had for some time become littered with rubbish, power poles, mounds of earth and growing trees, it was held that there was no evidence of any intention to abandon the way. The following excerpts from the decision are pertinent:

It is well recognized that an easement or right of way may be abandoned. However, to determine the issue of abandonment several factors need be considered among which are whether or not the right was acquired by prescription or grant, the extent of its use, and the actual intent of the owner.

This court has previously recognized that a right gained by conveyance may not be lost by non-use alone and that an actual intent to abandon be evident. The same principle was reaffirmed in Tuttle v. Sowadzki, 126 P. 959, 964-65 and in Riter v. Cayias, 431 P.2d 788, 789.

In regard to the quantum of proof required on the issue of abandonment, the court was confronted with the question in connection with a prescriptive easement in Harmon v. Rasmussen, 375 P.2d 762 and it was therein determined that the degree of proof required was that of clear and convincing actions releasing the ownership and right of use and an intentional abandonment, not a mere preponderance of the evidence.

The facts of the case at hand reveal that the right of way is of long standing, is supported by a grant, and the evidence presented of actual intent to abandon was insufficient. While the evidence does reflect the right of way is somewhat obstructed by debris, undergrowth and items of personal property, there is clear evidence that it was used, is presently in a condition as will allow continued use, and that defendants have access thereto through a portion of removable fence utilized as a gate. In fact, the trial court made a specific finding of occasional use.

The trial court further found that defendants would

suffer only slight inconvenience should the right of way be closed while on the other hand plaintiff would suffer substantial monetary loss if the same remained open.

In light of the specific findings of the court, which are contrary to a determination of abandonment, and in derogation of the previously announced principles of law pertaining to abandonment of granted rights of way, we reverse and rule as a matter of law that the right of way was not abandoned and remand for the entry of judgment in favor of defendants. No cost awarded.

Western Gateway Storage Co. v. Treseder, 567 P.2d 181, 182 (Utah 1977) (emphasis added).

Although Williams did not allege in their complaint that the Hoopiiana had abandoned the right-of-way granted in 1947, and in Williams' Reply to Hoopiiana's Objection to Motion for Summary Judgment stated "However, the case before the Court here is not a question of 'non-use' of a right-of-way by the owner of Lot 6," at trial, Williams endeavored to rely primarily upon an issue of abandonment. Williams rely upon the Texas case of Kearney & Son v. Fancher, 401 S.W.2d 897 (1966). The Kearney case was one in which the continuation of the easement was an "impossibility". The "impossibility" in that case was the result of the Blue Diamond Company's acquisition of property north of the subject tracts, and the notification of Blue Diamond that it was closing off such connecting switch track crossing their property and that it would no longer allow railroad cars to cross its property. Id. at 902. The court stated that the action of Blue Diamond effectively cut off all railroad car access to the switch track in question. Id. at 902-03.

No such impossibility exists in the case before this Court.

There is a main railroad track along the center of 400 West (formerly 300 West) and a spur track exiting the main line at the intersection of 400 West and 700 South which presently runs to the northeast serving the Newspaper Agency. Hoopiiana has his own right-of-way over the Williams' property which extends to the south line of 700 south street and is less than 100 feet from where the spurs joined in the intersection of 400 West and 700 South. Utah statutes requiring the railroad corporation to make connections and provide services by switches and spurs are appended to this brief and cited as Utah Code Annotated §§ 54-3-20 and 54-4-11. Accordingly, upon application of Hoopiiana, his successors or assigns the spur track service is provided by law.

Williams also cite the Kansas case of Gauges v. State of Kansas, 815 P.2d 501 (1991) wherein the easement was granted to the railroad, not the abutting owner and the railroad abandoned its right-of-way by disclaimer. In Gauges, there was no dispute on the issue of abandonment by the railroad. See id at 503. The trial court cited a prior Kansas abandonment decision, Miller v. St. Louis, Southwestern Ry. Co., 718 P.2d 610 (1986) which held:

Whether a right-of-way has been abandoned by a railroad company is largely a question of intent, and it is generally held that in order to constitute an abandonment there must be an intent to relinquish, together with external acts by which the intent is carried into effect.

Id. at 613 (quoting Pratt v. Griesse, 409 P.2d 777, 780-781 (Utah 1966)).

The Miller court found no abandonment by the railroad which

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